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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director
October 26, 2015
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan (24 F0d A Ve
and the Honorable Council
State House .
O Ce.

Concord, NH 03301 Sole S

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Family Assistance to enter
into a retroactive sole source agreement with New Hampshire Catholic Charities d/b/a New
Hampshire Food Bank (Vendor #177165 B003), 700 East Industrial Park Drive, Manchester, NH
03109, to provide outreach activities and assistance to individuals regarding the Food Stamp Program,
in an amount not to exceed $22,750 effective retroactive from October 1, 2015 upon Governor and
Executive Council approval through September 30, 2016. 100% Federal Funds

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2016
and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2017 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

05-95-45-450010-6127 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL YEAR CLASS TITLE ACTIVITY CODE AMOUNT
2016 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services 45068005 $16,937.50
2017 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services 45068005 $5,812.50

TOTAL: | $22,750.00

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the Department did not receive the executed contract
documents from the vendor until October 22, 2015.

The agreement is sole source because the United States Department of Agriculture Food and
Nutrition Service required that the Department of Health and Human Services designate a partner
agency when submitting the Federal Fiscal Year 2016 Outreach Plan for funding. The New Hampshire
Catholic Charities d/b/a the New Hampshire Food Bank was identified as the designee in the Federal
Fiscal Year 2016 Outreach Pian.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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The purpose of this request is to allow the New Hampshire Food Bank to perform food stamp
outreach activities that include explaining the Food Stamp Program and providing technical assistance
to individuals who wish to apply for food stamps online. The Food Stamp Outreach Coordinator will
assist individuals with on-line Food Stamp applications at agencies that consistently encourage clients
to use the online food stamp application service. Additionally, the Food Stamp Outreach Coordinator
will assist the Department with marketing and outreach efforts to alert potential clients to the availability
of the online food stamp application process. Further, the Food Stamp Outreach Coordinator will
update the New Hampshire Food Bank website regularly with current information regarding the Food
Stamp Program and application process.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, individuals who are
eligible to receive food stamps may not benefit from nutrition and lifestyle educational opportunities
available through the New Hampshire Food Bank, which are designed to improve the health and well-
being of New Hampshire citizens. Further, many individuals could lose an opportunity to receive
assistance with the on-line application process for food stamps, which may delay the receipt of much
needed benefits.

Area Served: Statewide
Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds

in the event that Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Mary Ann Cgoney
Associate Zommissione

Approved by: }B .(M AV /~/ '

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Seruvices’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: SNAP Food Stamp Outreach Coordinator

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
New Hampshire Catholoic Charities d/b/a 700 East Industrial Park Drive
New Hampshire Food Bank Manchester, NH 03109
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
(603) 669-9725 Ext 145 05-95-45-450010-6127- September 30, 2016 $22,750
hcostello@nhfoodbank.org 102-500731
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Eric Borrin, Director 603-271-9558
ntractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
&mw;w Ofdat  Dominique A Kist, VP +coo

1.13 Acknow]edgerréﬁt State of‘//7 W , County of QIC(['OM A

On /0/4‘///3/ , before the undersigned officer, personatly appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose namnc is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated in block 1.12,
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public 0

d.
[Seal]

.13.2 Name and Title of N¢ta
% ¢ Cé//éZ %a/w?/é/b

—&-Wncy SlW ] 15 Nanfe and Title of State Agency Signatory
Date: / //’2 / > /MW/ I%ﬂ @mﬂr /&?&J é;ﬂm%ﬁxr
1.16 ApWN .H. Dlér/a/mcnt of Admini#ratién, Division of Peronnel (if applicable)
By: ire

Director, On:

1.17 Approﬁy the Attorney Gencral (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

/U\P/‘/\/ g A gla M,M ‘-‘7//5/}5

1.18 Approval by the Govern d Executive Council (i dpplicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (*Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date”).

3.2 If the Contractor commenccs the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Scrvices by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hcreunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In thc event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

.o, ' /
Contractor Initials ’ y

Date 0 /4[5



Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer spccificd in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Scrvices satisfactorily or on
schedule:

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may takc any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be ren:edied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser speeification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determincs that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contracto::

8.2.3 set off against any othcr obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event ot Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean all
information and things developcd or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or devcloped by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, Jrawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer prograins, computer
printouts. notes, letters, memoranda. papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Statc or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Contidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 21-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE,

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New

Hampshire.
Contractor Initials D‘ ii
Date_[FI5



14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Otficer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identificd in block 1.9, or his or her successor. certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of cach of the insurance policics. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thercof shall be atiached and are
incorporated herein by refercnce. llach certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice ol cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifics and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements o' N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor it subject to the
requirenients of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontrictor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
conncction with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agrcement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer idertified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers™ Compensation in the
manner Jescribed in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicatle renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. T State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers® Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employcc of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No iuilure by the State to
enforce uny provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemcd a waiver of its right= wi:h regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Defiult shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to cr.force each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hercto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreem:nt may bc amended,
waived or discharged only by an in: trument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of N :w Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials / V

Date /¢



New Hampshire Dcpartment of Health and Human Services
SNAP Food Stamp Qutreach Activities

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Services to be Provided

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs/services within ten (10) days from the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor shall create a full time Food Stamp Outreach Coordinator
position.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure the Food Stamp Outreach Coordinator performs
outreach activities as well as provides assistance to individuals with online food
stamp applications. Activities and assistance shall include but are not limited to:

1.3.1. Ensuring that the Contactor's website includes an up to date Food Stamp
Outreach link that redirects users to:

1.3.1.1. A working link to the New Hampshire EASY application; and
1.3.1.2. A working link to the New Hampshire DHHS website.

1.3.2. Collaborating with and assisting the Department with outreach efforts to
alert pctential clients to the availability of the on-line Food Stamp
application.

1.3.3. Assisting potential Food Stamp clients with the on-line Food Stamp
application process as needed/requested.

1.3.4. Providing individuals with instructions and guidance on how to apply for
Food Stamps on-line.

1.4, The Contractor shall ensure that the Food Stamp Outreach Coordinator has an
adequate number of Releases of Information available for applicants to complete
in order that the Food Stamp Outreach Coordinator can discuss issues that the
applicaat/client has raised regarding his or her application and/or current Food
Stamp benefits. The Contractor shall:

1.4.1. Provide a copy of the Release of Information form used by the Food
Stamp Outreach Coordinator to the Department.

1.4.2. Ensure the Outreach Coordinator informs the Department of any issues
raised by applicants/clients who do not agree to sign the Release of
Information.

1.5. Explain to every applicant that if s/he refuses to sign the Release of Information
that the Food Stamp Program Manager will not be able to address his/her
specific issue.

1.6. The Contractor shall ensure the Food Stamp OQutreach Coordinator redirects
current Food Stamp clients to contact the Client Services Center for concern or
complaint resolution. In no instance shall the Outreach Coordinator attempt to
resolve any issue raised by a client already receiving Food Stamp benefits.

New Hampshire Catholic Charities d/b/a Contractor Initials: ‘2 ;!

New Hampshire Food Bank

Exhibit A pate: 19 )"/ 53
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
SNAP Food Stamp Outreach Activities

Exhibit A

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure the Food Stamp Outreach Coordinator spends the
majority of his or her time in the field assisting individuals with on-line Food Stamp
applications at agencies that consistently encourage their clients apply for Food
Stamps on-line.

1.8. The Contractor shall ensure that the Outreach Coordinator is available at the Food
Bank office, at specified times, to assist clients in the application process.

1.9. The Contractor shall ensure the New Hampshire Food Bank Program Manager
and the Food Stamp Outreach Coordinator meet with the Department on a
monthly basis in order to discuss topics that include, but are not limited to:

1.9.1. Locations in which the Outreach Coordinator has had a presence in the
field.

1.9.2. Applications submitted and in progress that resuited from the Food Stamp
Outreach Coordinator’'s work in the field and in the office

1.9.3. Information regarding the location from where the application originated.

1.9.4. Names of applicants for whom applications have been submitted so the
Departnient can determine if applicants werefare eligible.

1.9.5. Concerns or complaints from the Contractor and/or the Department.

1.9.6. Names of individuals who have indicated a problem accessing benefits to
which they believe they are entitled and the date on which those
individuals were referred to Client Services.

2, Reporting Requirements

21. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports with invoices submitted in
accordance with Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payments.
Reports shall include, but not be limited to:

2.1.1. The totzl weekly hours worked for the month.

2.1.2. The total weekly hours spent assisting individuals with on-line Food
Stamp applications, by location.

3. Requirements of Delivery of Services

3.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

3.2 The Contractor shall provide a copy of the Release of Information form utilized in
Section 1.4.1, above, to the Department within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide a monthly schedule for the Food Stamp Outreach
Coordinator to the Department no later than the 25" day of the preceding month,
in accordance with Sections 1.6 and 1.7, above.

3.4, The Contractor shall attend twelve (12) monthly meetings per contract period, as

described in Section 1.8. z
New Hampshire Catholic Char.ties d/b/a Contractor [nitials: { z
New Hampshire Food Bank / 5
Exhibit A
Page 1 of 1 Date: lal + /



New Hampshire Department ot Health and Human Services
SNAP Food Stamp Outreach Activities

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, General
Provisions, Price Limitation, block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services and shall be in accordance with Exhibit B-1 and
Exhibit B-2.

2. This contract is funded with federal funds made available under the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance, CFDA #10.561, Federal Agency, United States Department of
Agriculture, Program Title, Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program.

3. Invoices must be submitted monthly within thirty (30) days of the end of the previous
month, with in-kind match funds documented. The State shall make payment to the
Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor services
provided pursuant to this Agreement.

4. Invoices and reports specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Reporting
Requirements must be submitted to:

Attn: Kenneth Merrifieid, Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3357

5. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days from the Form
P37, General Provisions, Contract Completion Date, block 1.7.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance
with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if
the said services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

7. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at
full capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract
period.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment
limited to transfer the funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be
made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval
of the Governor and Executive Council.

New Hampshire Catholic Charities d/b/a Contractor Initials: ( ) i]?

New Hampshire Food Bank

Exhibit B d { ;
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New Hampshire Department ¢f Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Ccntractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in crder to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Nctwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments wil be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs; Z
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or ccllected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, iabor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including a!l forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payrnent for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confideniiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initialsw
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

06127114 Page 3 of 5 Date IQ‘}‘ J_s

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-zllowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other inform::tion required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract a.d all the obligations of the parties hereunder {except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contr::ct are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination c: ine Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Depariment shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation «f this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshirc, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of Ni:w Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The CHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but nct limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the: Contractor shall comply with ali taws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipa! authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procu' - said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such - :nse or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby cover :nts and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, ordars, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agc.ncy, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Op;ortunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP; to the Office for Civit Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award ¢f $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EZOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardiess of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enharncement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to ali contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $1..0,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLO 7 i:E WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblowcr rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shalt insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the sinmiplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall ratain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is acconiplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor del¢:gates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities aiid how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials [ X :
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, rcgulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Departmant of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of alf regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal reguiations promulgatad thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

/

[
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legisiative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1  comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence
with additional general liability umbrella coverage of not less than $4,000,000 each
occurrence; at-d

4. The Department reserves the option to renew this agreement for up to three (3) years subject to
satisfactory provision of services, continued funding and approval of the Governor and Execujjve
Council.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’'s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the uniawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3.  Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the empioyee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction:

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free
Workplace Requirements
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking ap::ropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces cn file that are not identified here.

Captractor Name:

/o/;n//f Al &‘QAJL

Date Name: Doninque A- Kus -
1e: VP+ C‘,d)
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New Hampshire Department of t{eaith and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-12%, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title 1V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grai:: under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the oest of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federzl appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to iniluence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan. or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agrecments) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a cvil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Coptractor Name:

.

of> )15 pd A
Date Name: ) m.&(,qfl A. LuSt

Title: ’7¢ COG

Exhibit E ~ Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department o. iiealth and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
A-D OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Sect o 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Respons.bility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to p: svide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covere i transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot nrovide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection wit the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to ent :r into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certifi:;ation or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this claus: is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Govarnment, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary paricipant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contrac') is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erro::cous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

"o »our " u

5. The terms “covered transact cn,” “debarred,” "suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “p2rson,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as us«:d in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rul-:s implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary par:.icipant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covi:red transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary par..cipant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Rec garding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transac:ions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicit ilions for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered trensaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transactic 1 that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transactior  unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequ 2ncy by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not re 1uired to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the fore going shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records

in order to render in good fa: - the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and p
N

Exh2it F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials _
And Other Responsibility Matters , é
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New Hampshire Department o. iHealth and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course: of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineliginle, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies a:ailable to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary par..cipant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debzrred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a thre.:-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rende red against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtairing, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contr:.ct under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commissic.) of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or loce!) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a thre::-year period preceding this application/proposal had cne or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospectivz participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting th.s lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, czrifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debz red, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded fraom participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participan: shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicit itions for lower tier covered transactions.

actor Name:

1'0/;' //S W g QwQa/('

oete il UO"’{//\'W(/C A. st
VCOG
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
V/HISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, coior, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794}, which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity,

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equai opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-bzsed and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department cf Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA\) for Fiscal Year 2013 (P :t. L. 112-238, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employec ‘Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
Contractor Initials

Certification of Compliance with regui- o unts pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equai Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations
and Whistleblower protections
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New Hampshire Department oi Hi:zith and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Secticns 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

obis Uy Wl CF/Q«Jr

Date _I‘;J;r::e: )WM' ve %
/P +600

Exhibit G
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New Hampshire Department of Hc it and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION RizCARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmantal Tobacce Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be peritted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used rotitinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local goverr ments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Secticn = .11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this cont-act, the Contractor agrees to make reasonabie efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of ui.lic Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

0l> /i (e .
Date Name: l)()m@nique R S
Vi7+ Coo

N4
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New Hampshire Department of Healin and Human Services

Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually [dentifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable :o0 business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protccted health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same rieaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Reguiations.

b. “Business Associate” has the m:aning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘Covered Entity” has the mean ng given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shali f.ave the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have ti:e same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Healtl Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlil, Subtitie D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insu-ance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for i°rivacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who jualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j.  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the S'andards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 16:) and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Hum:.in Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” <hall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on |:.ehalf of Covered Entity.
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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‘Required by Law” shall have th2 same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secratary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health In‘ormation” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standzrd that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organiz:tion that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Pa:ts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall nc: use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, emplo: ees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that wouid constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may us:: or disclose PHI:
l. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
1. For data aggreg:tion purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Ass:ciate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Asso iate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances fron: the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed cnly as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party: =ind (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance \vith the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate sh:.il not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhinit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the: basis that it is required by law, without first notifying

Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and

to seek appropriate relief. |t Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busin SSM

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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3/2014

Associate shall refrain from .isclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions «nd shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activitics of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associatc becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not proviced for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and exte 't of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers aid the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized pe:son used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was madc:

o Whether the protectc d health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which :ne risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shail complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall m:ike available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Acsociate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit [ Contractor Initials D
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business day: of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall mzke available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity. for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR St.ction 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such inforination as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
resporizibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such respanse as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not rctain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, ar the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agicement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHl. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PH| has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.505 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein zs Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amencment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necescary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicablc federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ]
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

L (f PLASAS vt Catholie Chathres dba MH %D;#c

The State } NQ% of the Contractor
W Ay & @M

Sfgnatlre u‘th;%(epresentative Signature of Au@}rized Representative
pcy, /éﬂ’m&‘a%«‘_\’DOml nque K- Rust

Namé of Authorized Representative Name of Authorizell Representative

/P + Coo

Title of Authorized Representative

10 15

Date
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Hzalth Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement ;,\ \
Page 6 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Heaith «nd Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT {FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity

Amount of award

Funding agency

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

Program source

Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

Location of the entity

Principle place of performance

Unique ider uiier of the entity (DUNS #)
. Total comprrsation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. Morz than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOOXONOIOAWN

o

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or av-ard amendment is made.

The Contractor :dentified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Corntractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the foi: "ving Certification:

The below nar~- o Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department o! | . alth and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Financial Acccuitability and Transparency Act.
Contractor Name: Q—*’

[D }a \ / (S : _
T Vodinge A B
+ (OO0

Exhibit J — Cc-rification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability \nd Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance D a_| l
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Heaith uind Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: (39996 4 DOE

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

~_NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
if the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or arganization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange / <t of 1934 (15 U.5.C.78m:{a), 780(d)) or section 8104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

1o __YES
If the answ:r to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J — Ccrufication Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials

Accountability ~nd Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance /0 9‘ IS
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date



State of New Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that New Hampshire Catholic Charities is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed March 7, 1946. 1 further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 13" day of May A.D. 2015

%%/

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




~ CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
l, —_“'\omav %\Olﬁ\% , do hereby certify that:

{(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. | am a duly elected Officer of Con\n{,\‘. L C\\a/mc ) )\ch \“\ AN 97\\.n <
(Agency Name) )

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on _)~]~ 201
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the ,)O M {\uL/Qt Lyl -V F d (OO

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the % _day of (caclocs ,20\5 .

{Date Contract Signed)

4 (\\omm?}\om\kf is the duly elected ccv‘nacnﬁ‘ CEQ

{Name of Contract Signatory) {Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency. %BYM M

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of MU Lrikeccp (_

A L —
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this égJ day of &(ﬁbzﬂo /9,

By_Ihomas Blonsk .
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

7/) M )mé& Zﬂ %ML\&F/J

otary Pubfic/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL) MICHELLE L. FASTNACHT, Notary Public
State of New Hampshire
My Commission Expires June 10, 2020
Cormission Expires:

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (

MM/DD/YYYY}

10/27/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE
DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF
INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE

CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and
conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of

such endorsement(s).

CONTACT

PRODUCER  porter & Curtis, LLC NAME: Kiara Lugo
’ PHONE
225 State Road (AIC.No, Ext).  ©10-891-8016 (Z‘\é( N 4844457225
Media, PA 19063 s Klugo@portercurtis.com
INSURER(S} AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A:  THE NATIONAL CATHOLIC RISK RETENTION GROUP, INC 10083
INSURED NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES INSURERB: CHURCH MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY 18767
NH FOOD BANK - INDUSTRIAL DRIVE INSURER C:
700 EAST INDUSTRIAL PARK DRIVE INSURER D:
MANCHESTER, NH 03109 INSURER E:
INSURER F:
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 362144 Account: 71419-100  REVISION NUMBER:
THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY
REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN.
THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS
SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE el s POLICY NUMBER :’N?,'V'V'ggﬁs% ;ﬁ,’;gm LIMITS
GENERAL UABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY DAMAGE TO RENTED
X PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ Included
J CLAIMS MADE E]OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $ Not Covered
A D D RRG 10407-18 03/01/2015  [03/01/2016 [ S 000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $ None
G—"EN.L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $  None Applicable
POLICY I:] s D Loc $
p— COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (€a accident) $ 1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED —— p
uTOS oy []{[]| os00000-00-781649 03/01/2015  03/01/2016 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident $
B HIRED AUTOS NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
AUTOS (Per accident)
UMBRELLA LIAB X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 4,000,000
A X _|excessuas CLAIMS-MADE D D XS 10407-18 03/01/2015  (03/01/2016 AGGREGATE N/A
PED I I RETENTION
WORKERS COMPENSATION AND WC STATU- OTH-
EMPLOYERS LIABILITY YIN 03/01/2015 03/01/2016 X | Torv LMiTs I ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE -07-
g |OFFICERMENBER EXCLUDED? m 0500000-07-781850 E.L EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE |§ 1,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 1,000,000
B |Auto Physical Damage 0500000-09-781649 03/01/2015  [03/01/2016  [Actual Cash Value Less $500 Ded. Comp & Coll
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
The limits include applicable retentions. Evidence of insurance with respect to SNAP application assistance.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

PROCUREMENT
129 PLEASANT ST
CONCORD, NH 03301

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE CONTRACTS &

PROVISIONS.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION
DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

wa&.d.(,_.

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.




e
ACORD
\—/

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE a0t

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE
DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF
INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE
CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: if the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and
conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of
such endorsement(s).

CONTACT -
PRODUCER  porter & Curtis, LLC NAME: Kiara Lugo S .
! PHONE I FAX ]
225 State Road (AC, Mo, Ext)  610:891-9016 e e gy HOAAAST2S
Media, PA 19063 Eb%”késs Kugo@portercutiscom ) ]
o INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NACE
INSURER A:  THE NATIONAL CATHOLIC RISK RETENTION GROUP, INC 10083
INSURED NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES | INSURER B:
NH FOOD BANK - INDUSTRIAL DRIVE INSURER C: ]
700 EAST INDUSTRIAL PARK DRIVE INSURER D:
MANCHESTER, NH 03109 INSURER E:
INSURER F:
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 361163 Account: 71419-100  REVISION NUMBER:
THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN iSSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY
REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN.
THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS
SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR ADDI | SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
MR TYPE OF INSURANCE NSR | Wy POLICY NUMBER (MMDDYYYY) | (MNIDDIYYYY) LIMITS
GEMNERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY DAMAGE TO RENTED
X PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ Included
OCCUR
CLAIMS MADE IZ] MED EXP (Any one person) $ Not Covered
A D D RRG 10407-18 03/01/2015  [03/01/2016 [ s T 000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $ None
TGENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $  None Applicable
PRO- Loc
PoLiCY I:I JECT D PrTTT IR :
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea secident) $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per $
ALL OWNED —
AUTOS iﬁ;iggULED D D BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
NON-OWNED [~ PROPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED AUTOS NONQL (Per scoident) $
MBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE D D AGGREGATE
PED l I RETENTION
WORKERS COMPENSATION AND WC STATU- | OTH-
JemPLOYERS LiABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE |g
i yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, f more space is required)
The limits include applicable retentions. Evidence of insurance with respect to SNAP application assistance.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE CONTRACTS & DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY
PROCUREMENT PROVISIONS.
129 PLEASANT ST

CONCORD, NH 03301

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE _ -
D L # éa.é‘(__

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and loao are reaistered marks of ACORD
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MWDD/YYYY)
03/04/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE
DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF
INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE

CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and

A,

conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an ment. A st;

such endorsement(s).

on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of

CONTACT o L
PRODUCER  Porier & Curtis, LLC nave, | Keraluge : - -
225 State Road (AC, No, Exyy,__610-891-9016 (o 48457225
Media, PA 19063 j@'}‘@.ﬁég 7 Klugo@porlercurtis.com -
B INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE | macs
INSURERA; THE NATIONAL CATHOLIC RISK RETENTION GROUP, INC 10083
INSURED NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES, INC. INSURER B: o -
NH FOOD BANK - INDUSTRIAL DRIVE | INSURER C: -
700 EAST INDUSTRIAL PARK DRIVE INSURER D:
MANCHESTER, NH 03109 INSURER E- ) B
INSURER F:
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 352116 Account: 71419-100  REVISION NUMBER:
THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY
REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN,
THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS
SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR ADDI | SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
iR TYPE OF INSURANCE iNon | Wvm POLICY NUMBER MWDDYVYY) | MDDNVYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABRITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY DAMAGE TO RENTED
X PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ Included
OCCUR
| CLAIMS MADE E MED EXP (Any one person) $ Not Covered
A D D RRG 10407-18 03/01/2015  |03/01/2016 [ " 100,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $ None
(_3——_EN‘L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ None Appiicable
PRO- LoC
POLICY JECT I:] $
AUTOMOBILE LIABRLITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $
St A {Ea acci
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per $
ALL OWNED —
SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY ident)
| ] JAUTOS AUTOS D D . (Per accit ) $
NON-OWNED [~ PROPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident) $
MBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE [
{excess Las CLAIMS-MADE D D AGGREGATE
PED I l RETENTION $
'WORKERS COMPENSATION AND WC STATU- | OTH-
|EMPLOYERS LIABRLITY YIN TORY LMTS ER
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
|¥f yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
The limits include appiicable retentions. Evidence of Insurance with respect to SNAP application assistance.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE - DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH &
HUMAN SERVICES - DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE
ATTN: ERIC BORRIN

129 PLEASANT STREET

CONCORD, NH 03301

PROVISIONS.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION
DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WALL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

AR Qémé(__

ACORD 25 (2010/06)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and loao are reaistarad marka of ACORD



New Hampshire Food Bank Mission Statement

The Mission of the New Hampshire Food Bank
is to feed hungry people by soliciting and
effectively distributing grocery products,
perishable foods, and services through a
statewide network of approved agencies; by
advocating for systemic change; and by
educating the public about the nature of, and
solutions to, problems of hunger in New
Hampshire.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
New Hampshire Catholic Charities
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the New Hampshire Food Bank which comprise the
statement of financial position as of March 31, 2015, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors” judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the organization’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the New Hampshire Food Bank as of March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Howe, Riley & Howe, PLLC  + 660 Chestnut Street, Manchester, NH 03104 '+ 603.627.3838



To the Board of Trustees
New Hampshire Catholic Charities
Manchester, New Hampshire

Page 2

Other Matter - March 31, 2014 Financial Statements

We have compiled the accompanying statement of financial position of the New Hampshire Food Bank as of March 31,
2014, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying 2014 financial statements
and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or provide any assurance about whether the 2014 financial statements are
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for designing, implementing, and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and
Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The objective of a compilation is to
assist management in presenting financial information in the form of financial statements without undertaking to obtain
or provide any assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements.

Manchester, New Hampshire N VL W
July 29, 2015 /ZYLW\K’ | PLLC—



ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Pledges receivable
Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

FIXED ASSETS

Leasehold improvements
Equipment and vehicles
Furniture and fixtures

Less: accumulated depreciation

Fixed assets, net

Total

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable:

Trade

Other

Affiliates
Accrued salaries and wages
Employee benefits payable

Total current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

Total

NEMWCHAMPSTHRE-FOOD BANK
Statements of Financial Position
March 31. 2015 and 2014

See Independent Accountants' Report

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2015 2014
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Temporarily Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total
499,458 316,529 815,987 95,451 205,190 300,641
100,177 - 100,177 116,771 - 116,771
32,441 - 32,441 52,331 - 52,331
456,180 - 456,180 555,923 - 555,923
13,072 - 13,072 14,618 - 14,618
1,101,328 316,529 1,417,857 835,094 205,190 1,040,284
30,477 - 30,477 30,477 - 30,477
1,056,764 - 1,056,764 1,000,671 - 1,000,671
63,212 - 63,212 62,437 - 62,437
1,150,453 - 1,150,453 1,093,585 - 1,093,585
797,917 - 797,917 711,999 - 711,999
352,536 - 352,536 381,586 - 381,586
1,453,864 $ 316,529 $ 1,770,393 1,216,680 $ 205,190 $ 1,421,870
58,984 - 58,984 139,333 - 139,333
95,055 - 95,055 77,993 - 77,993
14,494 - 14,494 44,345 - 44,345
47,924 - 47,924 35,568 - 35,568
39,062 - 39,062 36,232 - 36,232
255,519 - 255,519 333,471 - 333,471
1,198,345 - 1,198,345 883,209 - 883,209
- 316,529 316,529 - 205,190 205,190
1,198,345 316,529 1,514,874 883,209 205,190 1,088,399
1,453,864 $ 316,529 $ 1,770,393 1,216,680 $ 205,190 $ 1421870

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.

3



SOV HIANIPSEHRE FQOD BANVK
Statements of Activities
For the Years Ended March 31. 2015 and 2014

See Independent Accountants' Report

2013 2014
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Temporarily Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT:
Annual appeal 33,044 - 33,044 30,254 - 30,254
Bequests, donations and fundraising 4,628,580 315,223 4,943 803 4,392,494 195,190 4,587,684
In-kind donations 17,673,239 - 17,673,239 12,123,369 - 12,123,369
Net assets released from restriction 203,884 (203,884) - 155,121 (155,121) -
Other 694,093 - 694,093 667,626 - 667,626

Total revenue, gains and other
support 23,232,840 111,339 23,344,179 17,368,864 40,069 17,408,933
EXPENSES:

Program services 22,106,305 - 22,106,305 16,397,182 - 16,397,182
Fundraising 470,324 - 470,324 237,287 - 237,287
Support services 342,086 - 342,086 301,878 - 301,878
Total expenses 22,918,715 - 22,918,715 16,936,347 - 16,936,347
INVESTMENT INCOME, net 1,011 - 1,011 176 - 176
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 315,136 111,339 426,475 432,693 40,069 472,762
NET ASSETS - beginning of year 883,209 205,190 1,088,399 450,516 165,121 615,637
NET ASSETS - end of year $  1,198345 3 316,529 $ 1,514,874 3 883,209 $ 205,190 $ 1,088,399

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Professional fees
Fundraising costs

Other purchased services
Advertising and promotion
Recruiting advertising
Office supplies

Other supplies

Postage and shipping
Program materials
Printing

Telephone

Dues and subscriptions
Information technology
Rent and occupancy costs

Equipment maintenance, repair

and rentals
Travel
Hospitality
Conferences and meetings
Interest

Depreciation and amortization

TInsurance

Miscellaneous

Grants and awards

Food purchases and vending
Food donations

Bad debts

Administration costs

Barnk service charges

Total expenses

NEW HAMPSHIRE FOOD BANK

Statements of Functional Expenses

For the Years Ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

See Independent Accountants' Report

2015 2014
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Program Support Program Support
Services Fundraising Services Total Services Fundraising Services Total
961,144 305,383 268,575 1,535,102 1,072,620 137,050 237,526 1,447,196
194,046 61,654 54,222 309,922 216,010 24,956 47,315 288,281
69,028 21,932 19,289 110,249 76,477 10,287 17,037 103,801
12,877 - - 12,877 19,830 - - 19,830
- 81,355 - 81,355 - 64,994 - 64,994
73,605 - - 73,605 47,765 - - 47,765
42,503 - - 42,503 37,167 - - 37,167
- - - - 75 - - 75
9,506 - - 9,506 8,843 - - 8,843
36,570 - - 36,570 48,828 - - 48,828
184,561 - - 184,561 163,820 - - 163,820
26,724 - - 26,724 26,523 - - 26,523
259,500 - - 259,500 199,738 - - 199,738
9,511 - - 9,511 9,225 - - 9,225
9,714 - - 9,714 8,858 - - 8,858
58,112 - - 58,112 31,015 - - 31,015
542,340 - - 542,340 535,090 - - 535,090
50,121 - - 50,121 47,419 - - 47,419
75,160 - - 75,160 77,944 - - 77,944
1,243 - - 1,243 925 - - 925
18,055 - - 18,055 15,147 - - 15,147
1 - - 1 559 - - 559
85,918 - - 85,918 77,208 - - 77,208
49,224 - - 49,224 41,963 - - 41,963
42,720 - - 42,720 33,397 - - 33,397
74 - - 74 53 - - 53
1,291,686 - - 1,291,686 1,379,989 - - 1,379,989
17,710,138 - - 17,710,138 11,942,976 - - 11,942,976
- - - - 107 - - 107
263,093 - - 263,093 247,438 - - 247,438
29,131 - - 29,131 30,173 - - 30,173
$ 22,106,305 3 470,324 3 342,086 22,918,715 $ 16,397,182 3 237,287 3 301,878 $ 16,936,347

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



NEW HAMPSIIRE FOOD BANK
Statements of Cash [lows
For the Years Ended March 31. 2015 and 2014

See Independent Accountants' Report

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Bad debts
Food donations received
Food donations distributed
Donated assets
Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable
Pledges receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of fixed assets
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2015 2014
(Audited) (Unaudited)
426,475 472,762
85,918 77,208
- 107
(17,610,395) (12,030,288)
17,710,138 11,942,976
- (18,240)
16,594 (58.,816)
19,890 15,630
1,546 4,645
(77,952) (298,946)
572,214 107,038
(56,868) (20,863)
515,346 86,175
300,641 214,466
815,987 $ 300,641



Note 1 -

NEW HAMPSHIRE FOOD BANK
Notes to Financial Stalements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
See Independent Accountants' Report

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The New Hampshire Food Bank ("the Food Bank") is a program of New Hampshire Catholic Charities
("Catholic Charities") which is a non-profit organization providing health and social service programs to
individuals throughout the State of New Hampshire. Under the umbrella of Catholic Charities, the Food
Bank receives a significant amount of support from the organization in the form of operational oversight,
human resources, accounting, information technology and data processing services. The Food Bank
distributes food to more than 400 non-profit food agencies throughout New Hampshire. It receives food
donations through community food drives, local farmers, grocery stores and wholesalers, and purchases
food for distribution across the state. The Food Bank has also developed wide-reaching programs to
serve and educate their registered agencies and poor and vulnerable residents throughout the state.

The accompanying financial statements reflect the application of the accounting policies described in this
note.

(A) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, the Food Bank reports information regarding its financial position
and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets,
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

(B)  Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, and other changes in net assets during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

© Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Food Bank considers certificates of deposit and other highly liquid debt
instruments with a maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase to be cash
equivalents.

Catholic Charities maintains a centralized operating account which receives and
disburses cash of all of its wholly-owned agencies and funds. This account had a
balance of $10,901,007 and $11,061,769 at March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, of
which $731,269 and $230,537 represents the Food Bank’s portion at March 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively. These balances have been included in cash and cash
equivalents in the accompanying financial statements, and include both unrestricted
and temporarily restricted cash and cash equivalents.

The organization customarily maintains amounts on deposit in excess of the Federal
deposit insurance coverage during the year, but these deposits are substantially
collateralized.



Note 1 -

(D)

(E)

(F)

(&)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
See Independent Accountants' Report

Accounts Receivable

The accounts receivable are reported at their estimated net collectible amounts.
Management evaluates the outstanding accounts receivable based on an analysis of the
aging and the status of the accounts and establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts
as a charge to operations through bad debt expense. Uncollectible accounts are
charged off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. Delinquency status is
determined based on contractual terms. The Food Bank does not generally require
collateral for the extension of credit.

Inventory

Inventory, which consists primarily of donated food products, is recorded at the
estimated fair value at March 31, 2015 and 2014, which approximated the fair value at
the date of donation.

Fixed Assets

It is the Food Bank's policy to capitalize fixed assets over $500. Lesser amounts are
charged to operations. Fixed assets are capitalized in the accounts at cost if purchased
or at their estimated fair value if the assets are donated.

The Food Bank provides for depreciation of its fixed assets on the straight-line method
by charges to expense in amounts estimated to recover the cost or estimated fair value
of the assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation expense was $85,918 in
2015 and $77,208 in 2014.

Gifts of long-lived assets such as equipment and vehicles are reported as unrestricted
support, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.
Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be
used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are
reported as restricted support.

Donated Goods and Services

Donated goods and services are reported as support at estimated fair value at the date of
the gift. During the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Food Bank received
approximately $17,600,000 and $12,000,000, respectively, of donated product. The
approximate average wholesale value of one pound of donated product at the national
level, which was determined to be $1.72 in 2015 and $1.69 in 2014, was based on a
study performed by Feeding America, of which the Food Bank is a member.

Food donations are reported as a program expense when the food is distributed to local
distribution centers and needy individuals. During the years ended March 31, 2015 and
2014, the Food Bank distributed approximately $17,700,000 and $11,900,000,
respectively, of donated product.

Exclusive of the donated food, other in-kind donations and services for which fair
value can be validated and requiring specific expertise have been reflected in the
financial staternents at their estimated fair value. For the years ended March 31, 2015
and 2014, the Food Bank received approximately $73,000 and $123,000 in other
donated goods and services, respectively.



Note 1 -

@)

(H)

M

)

)

L)

NEW HAMPSHIRE FCOD BANK
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
See Independent Accountants’ Report

Donated Goods and Services (Continued)

In addition, a number of individuals and organizations have volunteered their services
to the Food Bank. For those services that do not require special expertise, the estimated
value of such donated services has not been recorded in the financial statements.

Salary and Expense Allocations

The Food Bank allocates employee salaries, benefits and payroll taxes to program
services, fundraising services, and support services based on management estimates of
the percentage of time each individual devotes to each type of service. Support services
include payroll costs for services provided by Catholic Charities for operational
oversight, human resources, accounting, information technology and data processing
services; these costs are allocated based on time studies. In addition, Catholic Charities
allocates administrative overhead costs to its programs based on its full-time
equivalents.

Advertising and Promotion

It is the Food Bank's policy to expense advertising and promotion costs as incurred.
Advertising and promotion costs were $42,503 and $37,167 in 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Federal and State Income Taxes

The Food Bank is operated by Catholic Charities which is classified as a public charity
and is exempt from Federal and state income taxes under the provisions of
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a result, no provision for income
taxes is required.

The Food Bank recognizes the tax benefit of an uncertain tax position only if
management determines that it is more likely than not that the tax position would be
sustained upon examination by taxing authorities based on the technical merit of the
position. Management has determined that as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Food
Bank did not have any uncertain tax positions. The Food Bank reports its activities as
part of the Catholic Charities Form 990 filing. Management of Catholic Charities
believes the organization's filings for the tax years ending before March 31, 2012 are
no longer subject to examination by Federal taxing authorities.

State Unemployment Compensation

The Food Bank is self-insured under State Unemployment Compensation law. Under
this provision, the Food Bank records an expense for the actual unemployment claim
instead of making quarterly payments to the State's unemployment fund.

Restricted Support

The Food Bank reports gifts of cash, fixed assets and other assets as restricted support
if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities. In the absence of
donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long donated fixed assets must be used, the
Food Bank has adopted a policy of reporting the expiration of donor restrictions when
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Note 1 -

Note 2 -

Note 3 -

Note 4 -

Note 5 -

NEW EANIPSHIRE TOOD BANK
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
See Independent Accountants’ Report

@) Restricted Support (Continued)

the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service. The Food Bank has
adopted a policy of treating restricted donations received, whose restrictions are met
within the same year, as unrestricted donations. The Food Bank has a similar policy
with respect to investment income earned on these funds.

Temporarily restricted net assets were available for food purchases and distribution, job
training, and nutritional education in the amounts of $316,529 and $205,190 at March
31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Permanently restricted net assets are restricted to investment in perpetuity, the income
from which is expendable for specific purposes. The Food Bank had no net assets at
March 31, 2015 or 2014 that were permanently restricted.

M) Pledges Receivable

The Food Bank solicits donations from the general public. Pledges that remain
uncollected as of the end of the year are recorded in the financial statements at
estimated net collectible amounts.

Related Party Transactions

Several years ago, Catholic Charities conducted a capital campaign to raise funds to defray costs
associated with the purchase and renovation of a warehouse used by the Food Bank. The warchouse,
improvements made to the property and fixed equipment are considered to be assets owned by Catholic
Charities' home office. The related expenses and depreciation expense for these assets are included in the
home office amounts. Based on the market rate for similar space, the Food Bank pays rent to the home
office for use of the facility. Rent expense was $345,000 for 2015 and 2014. In addition, the Food Bank
owed Catholic Charities $14,494 and $44,345 on an open account basis at March 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, for payments made on its behalf.

Retirement Plan

Catholic Charities has a contributory defined contribution retirement plan. The Food Bank's eligible

“employees may participate in this plan by deferring a portion of their pay as plan contributions. The Food

Bank also makes contributions to the plan equal to 3% of the eligible employees' gross wages. The total
expense for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 was approximately $41,000 and $37,000,
respectively.

Compensated Absences

The Food Bank has a policy whereby employees earn days of compensated absence, based upon length of
employment. It is the Food Bank's policy to accrue for these compensated absences as the time is earned.
An accrual for vacation, earned but not taken of $39,062 in 2015 and $36,232 in 2014, has been included
in the accompanying financial statements.

Insurance

The Food Bank pays premiums for liability and automobile insurance to the Diocese of Manchester, an
organization related to Catholic Charities through common governance ("the Diocese”). The Diocese is
self-insured up to a maximum amount per occurrence and has secured insurance to provide for losses over
this amount. The premiums are expensed by the Food Bank over the term of coverage. Total liability and
automobile insurance billed by the Diocese and included in insurance expense was approximately
$49,000 and $42,000 in 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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NEW TANIPSHIRIE LCOD B AN
Netes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014

See Independent Accountants' Report

Statements of Cash Flows - Non-Cash Transactions

There were no fixed assets donated to the Food Bank in 2015. Fixed assets totaling $18,240 were
donated to the Food Bank in 2014.

Major Suppliers

As a member of Feeding America, the national network of food banks, the Food Bank gains access to
otherwise unattainable food donations and potential funding. The Food Bank is able to use the
national resources of Feeding America to negotiate wholesale food prices and supply their agencies
with high-value items at a substantial discount. Partner retailers who only donate to Feeding America
members made food donations to the Food Bank totaling approximately $6,000,000 and $4,785,000
during the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. These donations represented
approximately 34% and 40% of the total donated food received for the years ended March 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively.

Contingencies

The Food Bank and various Catholic Charities affiliates have pledged all of their gross receipts, as
defined, and substantially all assets as collateral for bonds issued by the New Hampshire Health and
Education Facilities Authority. The proceeds of the bonds ($3,435,000 outstanding at March 31, 2015)
were loaned to other Catholic Charities affiliates and were used to finance various fixed asset additions
and refinance certain debt of those affiliates.

In addition, Catholic Charities has provided a self-subordinating mortgage deed on certain real property
used by the Food Bank, in accordance with its grant from the New Hampshire Community Development
Finance Authority. In accordance with the grant, the mortgage shall self-amortize, on a straight-line basis,
over a ten-year period beginning on December 31, 2012.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 29, 2015, the date when the financial
statements were available to be issued.

11



Raoard of irectors — NH Cathalic Charities 20158

Thomas E. Blonski. MBA

Sister Paula Marie Buley, IHM

Richard M. Ranker

Most Rev. Francis J. Christian, D.D., Ph.D

Scott G. Colby

James Coughlin

Edward Dudley

Todd C. Fahey

Rev. Msgr. Anthony R. Frontiero, S.T.D.

Michael J. Gilbert, MD

Brian P. Grip

Very Rev. Agapit Jean

Most Rev. Peter A. Libacci

Joseph Raczka

Patricia R. Shuster

President & CEQ - Brentwood
Secretary - Nashua
Manchecter

Vicar General - Diocese of

Vice Chairman - Londonderry
Hanover

Chelmsford. MA

Deputy Vice Chair - Bow
Manchester

Manchester

Seahrnnk

Bow

Treasurer - Dover

Chairman - Dincece of Manchester
Ambherst

Bedford

Manchester



Lynne A. Lorentsen

MancHesTER CHRISTIAN CHURCH, Manchester NH, April 2012 - present
Connections Director, October 2014 - present
Building opportunities for individuals to connect in groups, arranging semester based catalogs,
and coordinating Connections and Resource Center volunteer teams. Creating innovative
events that connect people to God and each other such as:
e If:Manchester Simulcast, February 2015 - Produced a regional simulcast
¢ Fireside, December 2013 - Created a multi-generational event. Free book
exchange, a coffee house, and an evening of fiction and nonfiction readings.
e Comfort Zone, June 2014 — Executed a workshop-based event for women to
educate and inspire attendees emotionally, physically, and nutritionally.

Associate Director of Children’s Ministry, April 2012 - October 2014
Collaborated with the Children’s Pastor to plan all-church family events, scheduled 50-75
volunteers weekly, maintained volunteer database, and co-created team based ministry. Ran
events such as:
¢ The Water Challenge: Snowball Effect — a fundraiser for The Water Project,
Winter 2013 ~
® Vacation Bible School 2012, 2013, and 2014

YOU'RE FIRED: PAINT YOUR OWN POTTERY, Nashua, NH ~ 2010-2012
Retail Store Manager. Managed staff, customer care, and precise glazing and firing operations.

MARK LAWRENCE PHOTOGRAPHERS, Nashua, NH 2007-2010
Portrait Sales Consultant. Performed sales and support for District Director. Provided
exemplary customer service, quality assurance and order processing.

PORTFOLIO SALON AND RENEWAL SPA, Amherst NH 2006-2007
Front Desk Scheduler. Provided administrative support and calendar management in a fast
paced environment.

THE PAMPERED CHEF 1993-1998
Independent Advanced Director. Developed and motivated regional team of 40 consultants in
the direct sales industry. Earned two incentive trips for sales achievement.

KEY STRENGTHS: Leadership, empathy, organization, motivation, creativity, flexibility and
communication. Experience in sustainable cross-cultural endeavors, leading groups,
articulating vision, and event management.



EDUCATION

Messiah College, Grantham PA, BA in Psychology

VOLUNTEER ACHIEVEMENTS AND GLOBAL QUTREACH

Susan G. Komen Breast Cancer 3 Day, Boston 2008, Bike Safety Crew 2009
Think Outside the Run 5K, Race Director. Rwanda HIV/AIDS Team Fundraiser at Mack’s
Apples, Londonderry May 2011

Rwanda 2009 PEACE Plan, Rwanda 2010

Rwanda 2010 Co-Leader Soccer Orphan Care

Rwanda 2011 HIV/Aids Education

Rwanda 2012 Compassion International Discovery Trip

Nicaragua 2015 Trip Leader REAP Granada Discovery Trip

Outreach Leadership Team-member, Manchester Christian Church, 2011 - present

REFERENCES:

Donnie Brown, former Children’s Pastor, Manchester Christian Church, 603-512-9801
Lisa Veilleux, Café Manager, Manchester Christian Church 603-289-5825

Michael Allard, You're Fired business owner 603-493-6453

Lisa Potter Depalma, Mark Lawrence Photography 603-219-3447



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Lynne Lorentsen SNAP Outreach Coordinator | $30,160 50% $15,080




